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Since the turn of the century)Bird's eye view postcards showing the center of

Hot Springs have been popular with the thousands of tourists and patients that
visit the spa each year. Because of its relative height, location, and shiny white
brick +the Citizens Building has often been the master of such scenes. Iocated at
the base of a narrow finger which points up Central Avenue past Bathouse Row, the
Citizens Building has been an imposing landmark in downtown Hot Springs since its
construction in 1911-1912, Confined to a tight {25 feet by 110 feet) lot the tall
narrow six floor silhouette is striking.

The Citizens Building was the first modern office building of skyscraper design
in the c¢ity. It was a completely up-to-date building when constructed. Raymond
Ledwidge, the president of First Federal Savings and Loan and manager of the
building for years, said that no expense was spared in its construction. &An
Oklahoma construction firm that took the contract to build it is said to have gone
broke in the process because the cost was so high. With its fancy brick work,
extensive fireproofing, interior marble stairs and trim, hot air registers, and
modern elevator, the Citizens Building was "the talk of the town™ when it was
built, said Ledwidge.

The design of the Citizens Building is based upon a tripartite formaula identified
with Louis H. Sulliwvan and common in early twentieth century skyscraper design.
Corresponding to the parts of a classical coclumn, the building has a base, a shaft,
and a capital, arranged in a 1l-4-1 pattern. The base is made up of nine imposing
arches, seven on the south side and one each at the narrow ends. Large heavy
tiles radiate - from the arches,and each has a decorative keystone. Bands of green

decorative tile articulate the division between the base and shaft at each end of
the building. -

(_..

The four storey shaft presents a calm clean look. The steel cage construction of
the building allowed an abundance of windows in the shaft. At the ends of the
building each of the upper floors has three double-hung windows. ©On the south
side each floor has seven pairs of double-hung windows, The windows collectively
provide very bright and agreeable work spaces inside the building. A strong line
of corbelling divides the shaft from the one-storey capital. Like the classical
Corinthiancolumn the capital is a crown more rich in decoration than the base.
The multi-leveled cornice appears to be supported at each end by four giant

cartouches. Each set of cartouches is linked by green bands of tile similar to
those found above the base.

The white glazed bricks that cover the upper floors of the structure make it
especially distinctive. Hot Springs residents commonly refer to them as Tiffany
brick and with good reason. The bricks were shipped to the city by rail from
Momence, Illinois, where they were produced by Leon Tiffany. An indentation on

the back of each brick carries the name, Tiffany, and in some cases the date the
brick was fired. Tiffany bricks were apparently produced for only a limited periocd
of time, two to three decades (c. 1900-1930). During that time three other Hot
Springs huildings were ccvered with the brick. The largest of the tliree, the famc
Como Hotel, was demolished in 1976, and for a time thereafter, individual Tiffany
bricke from the Como circulated through local antigue shops. The other two buildings
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with Tiffany brick, the Southern Apartments and a private residence, still stand.

The ground fiocor of the Citizens Building has been remodeled twice to accommodate

the operations of different occupants. The latest remodeling for First Federal
Savings and Loan in 1957-1958 made extensive use of marble and walnut trim which
remains intact. The upper floors, with a primary entrance on the south side, have
been changed very little. Two elevators and a stairwell aive access to the 18 office
suites above. The upstairs hallways are paved with small hexagonal tiles and lined
with marble baseboards. Much of the original wood moldings seem to be intact in the
offices. Most of the offices have heavy wooden doors with large one-light obscure-

glass windows announcing the names of former tenants in bold black létters.
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Sanborn Insurance Maps of Het Springs
Interviews with Rene Diaz, Judge Vernal S, lLedgerwood, and Raymond Ledwidge
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Its dramatic silhouette and attractive white brick veneer have made the Citizens
Building a landmark in downtown Hot Springs. As the first modern office building

in the spa, the structure has a significant position in the architectural tradition

of a city widely known for jits attractive buildings. The Citizens Building was
built in 1911-1912 for the old Citizens National Bank which occupied part of the
Spencer Building across the street during its construction. Some of the most
highly respected businessmen of Hot Springs, Citizens National officers, presided

over the construction. David Beitler, who retired from a successful wholesale grocery.

|
|
1
|
|

business in 1905 to become a banker, was president until he died in 1912. Gus Strauss

became the new presidents;and Hamp Williams, active irn many Hot Springs enterprises
and a popular civic leader, was vice-president. N ;

The Citizens National Bank occupied the lower floor of the building until it was
absorbed by the Arkansas National Bank in 1926. Aftexr the bank closed the first
floor was occupied by an insurance and investment firm. In the early 1930°'s

{and perhaps earlier; the ground floor was converted into Hot: Springs' first bus
terminal., The Tri-State Union Bus Depot occupied the location until 1946 when it
was moved to the Missouri Pacific Railroad Station,and First Federal Savings and
Loan Association moved into the downstairs. Chartered in 1934, First Federal
experienced & remarkable growth over the years., In 1957 First Iederal »ought the
building in what was called by the Hot Springs Sentinal Record (June 8, 1956)
"the largest real estate transaction involving business property here in several
years," During the next year First Federal had the lower floor and mezzanine re-
modeled and made the 18 rental suites above more comfortable with air conditioning,
new lighting, and a new elevator.

The office suites were occupied at various times throughout the history of the
building by government agencies, lawyers, chiropractors, accountants, the
Christian Science Association, and the Hot Springs Memorial Park Cemetery Company.
The federal agencies that had suites in the building included the Forest Service,
Selective Serwvice, Social Security Board, and the Federal Bureau of Investigation.
The Citizens Building was the place in Hot Springs to have an office. According
to B9 yvear old Vexrnal 5. Ledgerwood, "It was full all the time." Iedgerwood,

an atterney, political leader and municipal judge, had offices in the building
for 35 years,

In 1978, First Federal moved to a new building constructed on the site of the old
Como Hotel:and the Citizens Building fell vacant. In late 1978, Ned Todorovich,

a former Cnicago contractor, bought the building. He plans to restore it and open
it once again as an office building,

—
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION 14+ 1 of block 129. Bounded on the east by Broadway
Street, on the south by Bridge Street, on the west by Central Avenue, and on the
north by the 18957-1958 two story addition to the Citizens Building.

LISTALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES
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Citizens Building
Hot Springs, Arkansas
Robert D. Besom

1979

AHPP

E{ist Elevation

Citizens Building
Hot Springs, Arkamnsas
Robert D. Besom

1979
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South Elevation
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